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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Laguna Resorts & Hotels
Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and have
also audited the separate financial statements of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company

Limited for the same period.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.
| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order. to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

A member lirm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
and of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2013, and their

financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Thai Financial

Reporting Standards.
Emphasis of matter

| draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements regarding the change in accounting policy
due to the adoption of Thai Accounting Standard 12 Income Taxes and Note 5 to the financial
statements regarding the change in accounting policy for revalued property, plant and equipment.
The Company has restated the consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012, presented herein as comparative information, to reflect the adjustment
resulting from such change. The Company has also presented consolidated and separate
statements of financial position as at 1 January 2012 as comparative information, using the newly
adopted accounting policy for income taxes and accounting policy for revalued property, plant and

equipment. My opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

&._l\.,

Sophon Permsirivallop
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3182

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 21 February 2014

A member lirm of Ernst & Young Global Limited




Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited and lts subsidlaries

Statement of financlal position

As at 31 December 2013

Assets

Currant assels

Cash and cash equivalenls

Cumeni invesiment - shori-term fixed deposit
Trade and olher recalvables
Inventories

Proparly development cost

Other curreni assels

Total current assats

Non-current assels

Restiicled deposis el financial institulion
Long-term fixed deposil

Long-term trade accounls recelvable
Invesiments In subsidiaries
Investments in assoclales

Qlhar long-lem investmenls
Long-term loens to substdiaries
Long-lern leans lo employeas.
Investment properlles

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assels

Goodwill

Leasehold rights

Other non-cuirant assels

Total non-current assets

Total as9els

(Uni: Baht}
Consolidated financlal statements Separate financial statements
31 Dacember 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
Nols 2013 2012 2012 2013 2012 2012
(Restaled) (Restated)

g 370,628,298 571,864,369 478,996,335 17,182,951 53,398,241 26,153,457
10,424,865 - - - - -
10 579,000,676 623,115,792 476,336,444 205,710,145 183,353,880 187,413,647
12 123,132,426 133,423,656 144,839,892 - 104,634 224,390
13 3,414,814,261 2,387,510,437 2,631,454,014 245,064,435 245,242,887 276,007 447
14 204,771,602 192,237,232 195,834,056 26,924,638 30,969,734 16,031,714
4,702,981,118 3,808,161,366 3,930,561,341 494,872,071 613,169,386 505,910,655
g 41,188 - - - - -
2,000,000 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 2,600,000 -
15 144,442,669 160,678,416 173,031,673 14,063,348 24,890,227 34,869,249
16 - - - 3,479,025,077 3,479,025,077 3,408,568,104
17 456,568,175 516,305,462 534,049,189 - - -
18 861,652,280 544,332,731 318,049,756 245,287,796 - -
11 - - - 1,948,000,629 1,690,900,629 1,828,350,629
11 183,034 2,003,266 2,819,477 23,325 162,966 1,720,852
19 1,100,835,058 1,076,544.000 800,340,000 168,997,818 169,614,664 81,677,840
20 10,207 075,537 12,819,404,762 13,026,583,108 50,878,38¢ 174,392,630 256,444,342
a3z 81,588,647 86,822,203 40,239,607 - - -
16 407,903,881 407,003,881 407,903,881 - - -
21 22,912,803 24,765,903 26,665,372 . - -
69,513,624 69,944,080 70,193,196 3,041,643 3,057,237 3,132,194
13,344,617,187 15,710,195,694 15,419,775,817 5911,318,028 5,644,343 427 5,614,653,210
18,047.498,315 19,618,347,080 19,350,3237,258 6,408,190,097 6,067,512,812 6,120,563,965

The accompanylng nates are an integral part of the financlal statements.




Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited and its subsidlarles

Stlatement of financlal position (continued)
As at 31 December 2013

biate

Liabilities and shareholders® equity
Current llabllities
Shori-lerm loans from Ninanchal instilulions 22
Trade and other payables 23
Current porion of long-term Ioans from financial

institutions 28
Incoma tax payable
Advance received from cusiomers
Other current liabllities 24
Total current llabilitles
Non-current llabilities
Leng-lerm loans from subsldiaries 1"
Long-lerm Ioans from financial institulions

- nel of current pertion 25
Provislon for long-lerm employes benefits 26
Deferred lax llabHlties 32
Other non-current lizbililes
Total non-current llabliitles
Total [labllitles
Shareholders' equity
Share capital

Reglstered

211,675,359 ordinary shares of Bahl 10 each
lssued and fully pald-up
166,682,701 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each

Share premium
Caplal resarve 27
Retalned earnings

Appropriated - stetutory reserve 29

Unapproprialed
Other components of shareholders' equity
Equity altributzble to owner of lhe Company
Equity allribulable 1o non-controlling interesis

of the subsidlares
Total shareholders’ equity
Total llabllities and shareholders’ equity

(UniL Bahty
Consolldated financlal statemeonts Separata financlal statements
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 Decamber 1 January
2013 2012 2012 2013 2012 2012
(Restaled) (Reslated)

170,000,000 - 710,600,000 150,000,000 - 410,000,000
608,574,194 690,934,721 712,363,410 51,223,896 60,800,673 133,217,288
457,000,000 422 860,743 354,623,000 70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000
13,197,834 12,630,804 44,431,474 - - -
514,413,237 366,003,785 377,740,304 263,506 23,262,951 142,796,414
119,137,926 129,056,513 139,752,814 7,457,796 5,807,590 8,985,675
1,882,323,191 1,611,476,566 2,340,811,002 278,975,200 169,971,214 764,909,277
- - - 673,850,000 669,650,000 11,200,0c0
2,513,325,819 2,074,325,820 2,134,280,743 105,000,000 175,000,000 245,000,000
64,400,732 53,462,110 420,857,008 11,668,911 9,684,414 33,596,649
2,097 827 608 2,372,266,280 2,315673,971 153,361,368 70,245,853 66,947,098
97,628,618 91,163,067 79,455,379 7,888,729 14,809,524 11,468,666
4,763,182,678 5,491,307,286 4,660,267,102 051,769,008 ©45,689,801 368,232,313
6,646,605,769 7,102,783,852 6,991,078,104 1,230,744,208 1,105,561,015 1,133,231,680

2,116,762,580 2,116,763,500 2,116,753,680 2,116,753 ,680 2,116,753,580 2,116,753,580
1,666,827,010 1,666,827,010 1,668,627,010 1,666,827,010 1,666,827,0H0 1,666,827,010
2,062,460,602 2,062,460,4582 2,062,480,582 ' 2,062,460,582 2,082,460,582 2,062,460,582
568,130,588 668,130,588 568,130,588 - - -
211,676,358 211,675,358 211,675,368 211,675,350 211,675,358 211,675,358
2,621,320,853 2,441,089,082 2,376,797,731 626,195,591 B65,403,580 907,343,295
4,091,763,242 5,192,276,888 5,189,890 677 308,287,348 145,586,257 139,026,130
11,122,215,733 12,142,469,508 12,075,781,846 5,176,445,889 4,951,951,707 4,987,332,376
279,776,813 273,103,720 283,477,308 - - -
11,401,992,646 12,415,663,228 12,359,269,164 5,175,445,880 4,951,951,787 4,987,332,375
18,047,498,3156 19,518,347,080 19,350,337,268 6,406,100,097 6,057,512,812 6,120,563,9G6

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financlal statements.

Direclors




Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limlted and its subsidiaries
Income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
{Restated) {Restated)

Revenue
Revenue [rom hotel opaerations 3,428,458,199 3,164,823,205 7,631,600 34,478,700
Revenue from property development operations 744,416,413 692,571,753 224 443942 73,323,397
Ravenue from office rental operations 88,5642 903 92,397,575 40,632,272 42,770,358
Other income e 91,017,516 149,486,910 237,761,550 168,189,520
Total revenue 4,352,435,031 4,299,279,443 510,369,364 318,762,015
Expenses
Cost of hote! operations 1,687,284,556 1,539,343,133 331,660 8,129,556
Cost of property development operations 337,427,604 427,179,985 112,188,787 38,151,898
Cost of office rental operations 43,265,799 39,252,860 7,308,059 6,981,229
Selling expenses 430,518,638 399,269,560 17,179,411 11,117,136
Administralive expenses 1,695,686,105 1,614,147,043 225,328,750 257,174,571
Reversal of loss on impalrment of investment 18 {245,287,794) - (31,161,043) -
Total expenses 3,948,894,908 4,016,192,581 331,175,624 321,554,390
Profit {loss) before share of loss from Investment

In associate, finance cost and Income tax expenses 403,540,123 283,086,862 179,193,740 (2,792,375)
Shars of loss from invesiment in associale 17 (21,065,652) {5,427,759) - -
Profit (loss) before finance cost and income tax expenses 382,474,471 277,659,103 179,193,740 (2,792,375)
Finance cost (1080,457,409) (179,867 551) (59,913,373) {40,082,794)
Profit (loss) before income tax expenses 202,017,062 87,771,552 119,280,367 (42,875,169)
Income lax expanses 32 (85,378,946) (61,126,835) (34,282,728) {8,340,094)
Profit {loss) for the year 118,638,116 36,644,717 84,997,639 (61,215,263)
Profit (loss) aftributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 111,788,555 19,856,929 B4,297,639 (51,215,263}
Non-controlling inlerests of the subsidiaries 4,849,561 16,787,788

116,638,116 36,644,717

Basic earnings per share 33
Profit (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company 0.67 0,12 0.51 (0.31)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemenis.




Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Consolidated financlal statements

{Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2013 2012 2013 2012°
(Restated) (Restated)

Profit (loss) for the year 116,638,116 36,644,717 84,997,639 (51,215,263)
Other comprehensive income;
Exchange differences on translation of

financial statements in foreign currency 62,243,239 (6,493,2358) - -
Acluarial gain (loss) of post-employment benefits,

net of income fax 26 (10,714,023) 36,851,607 (3,370,977) 9,275,558
Unrealised gain on available-for-sales security,

net of income tax 18 - - 171,301,401 .
Addition (reversal) of revaluation surplus on assets,

net of income tax 28 {1,160,903,353) 16,800,000 (8,599,310) 6,559,127
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year (1,109,374,137) 47,158,372 159,331,114 16,834,685
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year (992,736,021) 83,803,089 244,328,753 (35,380,578)
Total comprehensive income {loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (999,409,114) 66,677,662 244,328,753 (35,380,578)
Non-confrolling interests of the subsidiaries 6,673,093 17,125,427

{992,736,021) 83,603,089

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of the financial stalements.
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Laguna Resors & Hotels Public Company Limited and Its subsldlaries
Cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2013

{Unit: Baht)
Gonsolidated flnancial statoments Separate financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit loss) before income tax expenses 202,017 062 97,771,552 119,280,367 (42,875,169)
AdJustments to reconcile profit (loss) before income tax expenses
to net cash provided by {paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation 286,246,559 292,209,092 5,779,228 8,086,075
Amortisalion of leasehold rights 2,568,362 2,591,415 - -
Allowance for doubtfullaccclunts {reversal) 7,311,339 3,244,158 - (180,213}
Reversal of reduction of Inventory to net realisable value {1,244,131) (793,732} - -
Share of loss from investment in associate 21,065,652 5,427,759 - -
Loss (gain) on change in falr value of investment properties (24,091,069} {81,204,000) 916,643 {12,204,000)
Loss {galn) on sales of property, plant and equipment 118,918 (1,601,034) 596,031 {263,779)
Write off property, plant and equipment 7 24,250,150 1,036,084 4,016,313 1,606,371
Dividend income from other long-term investment (12,775,4086) - (12,775,406) -
Provision for leng-term employee benefits (reversal) 16,314,581 (2,097.457) 1,662,327 (975,288)
Reversat of loss on impafrment of praperty, plant
and equipment - - (7,356,193) -
Reversal of loss on impalrment of Investment (245,287,794) - {31,161,043) -
Interest income (25,241,453) (34,019,414) (133,789,932) (120,327,540)
Interest expenses 180,457 409 179,887,551 59,913,373 40,082,794
Profit (loss) from operating activilies before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 431,700,209 483,351,974 5,971,908 (127,050,749}
Operaling assets (increase) decreass
Trade and other receivables (63,677,854} (46,760,095) 7,062,741 32,612,696
Invenlorles 11,535,261 12,210,168 104,634 119,756
Property development cost 52,762,084 346,714,421 111,717,451 37,256,439
Other current assels {7,544,109) 6,692,417 10,270,143 (9.917,857)
Long-term trade accounts receivable 15,635,857 12,963,257 10,826,876 9,969,022
Other non-current assels 430,256 249,116 15,594 74,957
Operating lfabilities increase (decreass)
Trade and other payables (82,911,506) (20,816,220) (11,199,888) (73,469,792)
Advance received from customers 158,408,452 {21,736,519) (22,999,445) (119,533,463)
Cther current llabilities ‘ (8,776,024) (10,696,302) 1,712,951 (3,178,854)
Provision for long-term employee benefits (28,768,488) (19,232,033} (3,981,552) (11,142,500)
Other non-current liabllities 6,465,462 11,707,678 (3,220,795} 320,958
Cash flows from {used in) operating activities 485,260,600 734,636,962 106,570,620 (262,939,487}
Cash received for interest income 25,714,083 33,756,002 104,380,931 00,954,813
Cash paid for interest expenses {179,906,430) (180,500,018} {58,350,259) (38,929,616)
Cash paid for Income tax (56,084,998) (80,337,279) (6,224,949} {5,020,063)
Net cash flows from {used In) operating activitles 264,983,255 507,555,668 146,336,343 {215,934,353)

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.




Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Cash flow statement {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

GCash flows from Investing actlvities
Increase in restricted deposits at financial inslitution
Increase In current Investment - short-term fixed deposit
Increase in long-lerm fixed deposit
Cash pald for purchase of investments in subsidiaries
Cash paid for purchase of other long-term investrment
Dividend received from investment in associate
Dividend received from other long-term investment
Cash received from long-term loans to subsidiaries
Cash paid for [ong-term |oans to subsidiaries .
Decrease In long-term loans to employees
Cash recelved from sales of property, plant and agquipment
Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Net cash flow from {used In} Investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease} in short-term loans from
financlal instituiion
Draw down of long-term loans from subsidiaries
Repayment of long-term loans from subsidlaries
Draw down of long-term loans from financlal instiulions
Repayment of long-term loans [rom financial institutions
Payment of dividends _
Met cash flows from {used In} financing actlvities
Net exchange differences on translation of financial
statements In foreign currency
Net Increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flows Information
Non-cash items
Transferred property, planl and equipment to Investment
properties
Transferred property developmant cost to property,
plant and equipment
Transferred properly, plant and equipment lo
property development cosl

Addlfion {reversal} of revaluation surplus on assets

Increase (decrease) in axchange differences on translation

of financial statements in forelgn currency of associate
Reversal of revaluation surplus on disposal of assets

Actuarial gain (loss) of post-employment benefits

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolldated financial statements

(Unit; Baht}

Separate financlal statements

2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated)

(41,189) - - -
{10,424,865) - - -
- {2,000,000) - (2,000,000)

- - - (70,456,973)
(62,031,864) (225,382,975) - -
85,024,714 - - -
12,775,408 - 12,775,408 -

. - 763,700,000 1,090,200,000

- - (1,020,800,000) (952,750,000)

1,810,222 725,921 139,641 1,557,866
1,177,667 2,191,109 7,297,531 a02
{231,909,035) (363,823,915) {8,029,550) {1.822,678)
(203,518,944) (568,289,860) (245,916,972) 64,729,137
170,000,000 (710,000,000) 150,000,000 {410,000,000)
- - 738,500,000 £55,450,000

- - {734,300,000) (297,000,000)
103,500,000 ,286,308,500 - -
(530,450,744) (378,835,880) (70,000,000) (70,000,000)
(20,834,661) (27,499,015) (20,824,661) -
(277,785,405) 166,973,606 63,365,339 178,450,000
15,285,023 4,827,923 - -
(201,036,071) 92,867,534 (36,215,290} 27,244,784
571,864,369 478,596,835 53,398,244 26,153,457
370,828,298 571,864,569 17,182,951 53,398,241
- 195,000,000 - 76,132,721

72,127,546 - - -
1,152,193,444 93,202,321 111,428,000 6,511,879
{1.451,129,189) 21,000,000 {10,749,137) 9,194,909
46,353,079 (12,315,938) - -

- 9,478,523 - -
(13,392,529) 46,064,509 (4,213,722) 11,594,447




Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2.1

General information

L aguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited (the Company”, “LRH") is a public
company incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. Its major shareholder is Banyan Tree

Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in Singapore.

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the Hotel business and
property development. There are three hotels in Laguna Phuket, namely Angsana
Laguna Phuket, Banyan Tree Phuket and Outrigger Laguna Phuket Resort and Villas,
located in Phuket province and one hotel, the Banyan Tree Bangkok, located in
Bangkok. The subsidiaries are also engaged in operating a golf club (Laguna Phuket
Golf Club), sales of merchandise (Banyan Tree Gallery), office and shops rental and

sale of holiday club memberships.

The Company and some of its subsidiaries' registered address is 21/11, 21/12B, 21/13
and 21/68 Thai Wah Tower 1, 6™ and 24™ Floor, South Sathorn Road, Tungmahamek,
Sathorn, Bangkok.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards enunciated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 and
their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification
of the Department of Business Development dated 28 September 2011, issued under
the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements
of the Company. The financial statements in English language have been transiated

from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.




2.2 Basis of consolidation

(@)

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Laguna
Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited (‘the Company”) and the following
subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries”).

Country of Percentage of
Company's name Nature of business Incorporation shareholding
2013 2012
% %

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company

Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) Ple. Limited ~ Sale of merchandise Singapore 51.0 51.0

Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited Sale of merchandise Thalland 51.0 51.0

Laguna Banyan Tree Limited™ Hotel operalions and property Thailand 100.0  100,0
development

Laguna Holiday Club Limited Holiday club membership and properiy Thaltand 1000  100.0
development

Laguna Grande Limiled Operating a golf club and property Thailand 100.0 1000
development

Laguna Lakes Limited Property development Thailand 94.9 94,9

Laguna (3) Limlted Owns land on which a hotel is sltuated Thailand 100.0 100.0

Laguna Service Company Limited® Provide utilities and other services 1o Thailand 72.9 72.9
hotels of lhe Company and subsidlaries

TWR - Holdings Limited Investment holding and property Thailand 1000  100.0
development

Subs|diaries held through TWR - Holdings Limited

Laguna Excurslons Limited Travel operallons Thailand 49.0 49.0

Laguna Village Limited Hotel operations Thailand 100.0 100.0

Mae Chan Properly Company Limiled Holds land plots for future development ‘Thailand 100.¢  100.0

Pal Samart Development Company Limited Holds land plots for future development Thailand 100.0 100.0

Phuket Resort Development Limited Properly development Thaitand 1000 100.0

PT AVC Indonesia Holiday club membership Indonesia 100.0  100.0

Talang Development Company Limited Property development Thailand 50.0 50.0

Thal Wah Plaza Limited Hotel operalions, lease of office building Thailand 100.0 1000
space and properly development

Thal Wah Tower Company Limited Lease of office building space Thalland 100.0  100.0

Thai Wah Tower {2} Company Limited Owns land on which a hotel is situaled Thailand 1000 100.0

Twin Waters Development Company Limited Properly development Thalland 1000 1000

Subsidiarles held through Laguna Grande Limited

Bangiao (1) Limited Owns land on which the golf course is Thailand 100.0  100.0
situated

Bangtao (2) Limited Qwns land on which the golf course is Thaitand 1000  100.0
situated

Bangtao (3) Limited Owns land on which a hotel staff Thalland 1000 100.0
dormitory Is situated

Bangtao {4} Limited Owns land on which the golf course is Thalland 100.0  100.0

situated




Q)
2

Country of Percentage of

Company's name Nature of business incorporation shareholding
2013 2042
% %
Subsidiaries held through Laguna Grande Limited (Confinue:
Bangtas Development Limited Qwns land on which a hotel is situated Thailand 100.0 100.0
Bangtao Grande Limiled Hotel operations Thaitang 1000  100.0
Laguna Central Limited Dormant Thailand 85.0 85.0
Subsldiary held through Banyan Trea Géllem {Slnaapore) Pte, Limited
Lijlang Banyan Tree Gallery Trading Co., Ltd Sale of merchandise The People’s 51.0 51.0
' Republic of
China

Subsidiary held through Laguna Hollday Club Limited
Cheer Golden Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100.0 100.0

Laguna Banyan Tree Limiled Is held 49% by the Company and §1% through TWR - Holdings Limited.
Laguna Services Company Limited Is held by the Company and 2 subsidiaries.

A subsidiary has a 49% shareholding in Laguna Excursions Limited. However, the

subsidiary has recognised its share of the income of this subsidiary at 100% after

deducting the cumulative preferential annual dividend of 15% of the par value of the

preference shares, in accordance with the income sharing percentage in the Articles of

Association.

(b)

(c)

(d)

()

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated being the date on which the Company obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same

significant accounting policies as the Company.

The assets and liabilities in the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries are
translated to Baht using the exchange rate prevailing on the end of reporting
period, and revenues and expenses translated using monthly average exchange
rates. The resulting differences are shown under the caption of "Exchange
differences on translation of financial statements in foreign currency” in the

statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary
companies have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of
the subsidiaries that are not held by the Company and are presented separately in
the consolidated income statement and within equity in the consolidated

statement of financial position.




2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries and

associates under the cost method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the
public.

New accounting standards

Below is a summary of accounting standards that became effective in the current
accounting year and those that will become effective in the future.

{a) Accounting standards that became effective in the current accounting year

Accounting standards:
TAS 12 Income Taxes
TAS 20 (revised 2009)  Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance
TAS 21 (revised 2009)  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Financial Reporting Standard:

TFRS 8 Operating Segments
Accounting Standard Interpretations:
TSIC10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities
TSIC 21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-

Depreciable Assets
TSIC25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an
Entity or its Shareholders
Accounting Treatment Guidance for Transfers of Financial Assets

These accounting standards, financial reporting standard, accounting standard
interpretations and accounting treatment guidance do not have any significant impact
on the financial statements, except for the following accounting standard.

TAS 12 income Taxes

This accounting standard requires an entity to identify temporary differences between
the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position and its
tax base and recognise the tax effects as deferred tax assets or liabilities subjecting to
certain recognition criteria. The Company and its subsidiaries have changed this
accounting policy in this current period and restated the prior year's financial
statements, presented as comparative information, as though the Company and its
subsidiaries had initially recognised the tax effects as deferred tax assets or liahilities.
The cumulative effect of this change in accounting policy has been presented in
Note 4.




(b) Accounting standards that will become effective in the future

Effective date

Accounting Standards:
TAS 1 (revised 2012) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2014

TAS 7 (revised 2012) Statement of Cash Flows 1 January 2014
TAS 12 (revised 2012) Income Taxes 1 January 2014
TAS 17 (revised 2012) leases 1 January 2014
TAS 18 (revised 2012) Revenue 1 January 2014
TAS 19 (revised 2012) Employee Benefits 1 January 2014
TAS 21 (revised 2012) The Effects of Changes in Foreign 1 Janvary 2014
Exchange Rates
TAS 24 (revised 2012)  Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2014
TAS 28 (revised 2012) Investments in Associates 1 January 2014
TAS 31 (revised 2012) Interests in Joint Ventures 1 January 2014
TAS 34 (revised 2012) Interim Financial Reporting 1 January 2014
TAS 36 (revised 2012) Impairment of Assets 1 January 2014
TAS 38 (revised 2012) Intangible Assets 1 January 2014
Financial Reporting Standards:
TFRS 2 (revised 2012) Share-based Payment 1 January 2014
TFRS 3 (revised 2012) Business Combinations 1 January 2014
TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2016

TFRS 5 {revised 2012) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 1 January 2014

Discontinued Operations

TFRS 8 (revised 2012) Operating Segments 1 January 2014
Accounting Standard Interpretations:

TSIC 15 Operating Leases - Incentives 1 January 2014

TSIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of 1 January 2014

Transactions Involving the Legal

Form of a Lease

TSIC 29 Service Concession Arrangements: 1 January 2014
Disclosures
TSIC 32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs 1 January 2014

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:
TFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, 1 January 2014
Restoration and Similar Liabilities
TFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement 1 January 2014

contains a Lease




: Effective date
TFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from 1 January 2014
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
TFRIC 7 _ Applying the Restatement Approach 1 January 2014
under TAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

TFRIC 10 ~ Interim Financial Reporting and 1 January 2014
{mpairment

TFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2014

TFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 January 2014

TFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assetsto 1 January 2014
Owners

TFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 1 January 2014

The Company’s management believes that these accounting standards, financial
reporting standards, accounting standard interpretations and financial reporting
standard interpretations will not have any significant impact on the financial statements

for the year when they are initially applied.

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting policy due to the adoption of new

accounting standard

During the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries made the change described
in Note 3 to their significant accounting policies, as a result of the adoption of Thai
Accounting Standard 12 Income Taxes. The cumulative effect of the change in the
accounting policy has been separately presented in the statements of changes in

shareholders’ equity.

The amounts of adjustments affecting the statements of financial position, the income

statements and the statements of comprehensive income are summarised below.




Statements of financlal position
Increase in deferred tax assets
Increase in goodwill
Increase in deferred fax liabillies
Decrease i_n unappropriated retained
earnings
Decrease in other componentls of
shareholders’ equity
- revaluation surplus on assets
- unrealised gain on available-for-
sales security
Increase (decrease) in equlty
attributable to non-controlling

Interests of the subsidiaries

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidaled financial statements Separate financlal statements
As at As at As at As al As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January

2013 ©o2012 2012 2013 2012 2012
81,689 86,823 59,240 - - -
26,600 26,800 26,600 - - -
2,097,028 2,372,356 2,315,674 153,361 79,246 66,947
(566,913) (546,412). (519,975) (76,289) (42,849) (32,191)
(1,422 B71) (1,712,8986) {1,710,592) (34,247) (36,397) {34,756)
- - - (42,825) - -
(55) 375 733 - - -

{Unlt: Thousand 8aht)

For the years ended 31 December

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

2013 2012 2013 2012

Income statements:
Increase in income tax expenses (23,617) (15,686) (34,283) (8,340)
Decrease in profit attributable lo equity holders of the

Company (23,187) {15,328) (34,283) (8,340)
Decrease in profit attributable 1o non-contrelling Interest

of |he subsidiaries {(430) (358) - -
Decrease in basic earnings per share (Baht) (0.14) (0.09) (0.21) {0.05)
Statements of comprehensive Income:
Decrease in actuarial {gain) loss of post-employment

benefils 2,679 (9,213) 843 {2,319




Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy for revalued property, plant and

equipment

During the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries changed its accounting policy
of depreciation recording of its property, plant and equipment ("PPE"), which presents
on a revaluation basis, previously only the depreciation calculated on the original cost of
PPE was charged to the income statement, as permitted by the relevant notification of
the Federation of Accounting Professions, to charge depreciation on the total revalued
amount to its income statement as required by TAS 16 (revised 2009) Property, plant
and equipment. The Company and its subsidiaries changed this accounting policy in the
current year and restated the prior year's financial statements, presented for
comparative purposes, as though the depreciation charged to the income statement

was initially calculated on the revalued amount of PPE.

The cumulative effect of the change in accounting policy has been separately presented

in the statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

The amounts of adjustments affecting the statements of financial position and the

income statements are summarised below.

(Unit; Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2013 2012 2012
Statements of financial position
Increase in other components of
shareholders' equity - revaluation surplus
on assets 561,486 557,289 551,081
Decrease in unappropriated retained earnings (561,486) {557,289) (5651,081)

{Unit; Thousand Baht)
For the years ended 31 December

Consolidated financial statements

2013 2012

Income statements
Increase in cost of hotel operations (4,197) (8,227)
Decrease in profit atfributable to equity holders of

the Company (4,179) (6,207)
Decrease in profit atiributable to non-controlling

interest of the subsidiaries {18) (20)
Decrease in basic earnings per share (Baht) (0.03) (0.04)




6.
6.1

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recoghition

(a) Revenue from hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations mainly comprises room sales, food and
beverage sales and revenue from auxiliary activities. Sales are the invoiced
value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied and services rendered
after deducting discounts.

Revenue from sales of merchandise (Gallery opération) is recognised when
the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to
the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods

supplied after deducting discounts.

(b) Revenue from property development operations

Revenue from the real estate sales

Revenue from sales of real estate is recognised when significant risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, and the Company and its
subsidiaries retain neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the real estate
sold. In addition, the amount of revenue can be measured refiably, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow
to the Company and its subsidiaries and the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Where properties are sold to non-Thais, the land is sold under a long-term
lease agreement comprising an initial term of thirty years with an option to
extend for two or three successive periods of thirty years each, without any
additional consideration to be paid in addition to the sum of the rental paid
for the initial lease term. These long-term lease agreements also contain a
further option that provides if Thai law permits non-Thais to own land on a
freehold basis, the lessor shall consent to sell the land to the lessee in return
for a token payment. Consequently, long-term leases are recognised as
sales of land for accounting purposes in accordance with the principle of

applying substance over form.
Revenue from sales of furniture

Revenue from sales of furniture is recognised when furniture is completely

and satisfactorily installed.




6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

- Revenue from sale of holiday club memberships

Revenue from the sale of holiday club memberships is wholly recognised
when a legally binding contract has been signed and at least fifty percent of

the contract price has been received.
(c) Revenue from rental and services

Renta! income is recognised over the lease period. Service revenue is recognised

when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion.
(d) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest

rate.
(e} Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established. .
Cost of property development

In determining the cost of property development sold, the anticipated total development
cost (after recognising the cost incurred to date) are attributed to units already sold and

then recognised as cost in profit or loss.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and at banks, and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to

withdrawal restrictions.
Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful
accounts is provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of
receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experience and analysis of

debt aging.
Property development cost

Property development cost is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost

comprises cost of land, design fee, infrastructure, construction and related interest.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being

determined on either the first-in, first-out or the weighted average basis.
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6.7

6.8

6.9

Investments

a) Investments in available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Changes in the
fair value of these securities are recorded in other comprehensive income, and will
be recorded in profit or loss when the securities are sold.

b} Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as
other investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment foss (if any).

¢) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial

statements using the equity method.

d) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for in the separate
financial statements using the cost method.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last
working day of the year. The fair value of debt instruments is determined based on yield
rates quoted by the Thai Bond Market Association. The fair value of unit trusts is

determined from their net asset value.
The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposat proceeds and the
carrying amount of the investment is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Any
gains or losses arising from changes in the value of investment properties are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period when
the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at its revalued amount. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost or
revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment
of assets (if any).

Land and buildings are initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date, and
subsequently revalued by an independent professional appraiser to their fair values. As
a policy, the revaluation will be performed every three years. If within that period, there
are factors which may cause significant changes in the value of assets, the revaluation
will be performed in that year to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ

materially from fair value at the end of reporting period.
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6.10

Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as

follows:

- When an asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of the revaluation of the
Company’s and subsidiaries’ assets, the increase is credited directly to the other
comprehensive income and the cumulative increase is recognised equity under
the heading of "Revaluation surplus on assets”. However, a revaluation increase
is recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease in

respect of the same asset previously recognised as an expense.

- When an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the
Company's and subsidiaries' assets, the decrease is recognised in profit or loss.
However, the revaluation decrease is charged to the other comprehensive income
to the extent that it does not exceed an amount already held in “Revaluation

surplus on assets” in respect of the same assets.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs or the
revalued amounts on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-15 years
Furniture, fixtures and motor vehicles 5 years
Operating and office equipment 3-5 vyears
Golf course, land improvement and external work §-10 years

Depreciation is included in determining earnings.
No depreciation is provided on land and construction in progress.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal of an asset is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. The
revaluation surplus presented in other components of shareholders' equity has been
directly transferred to retained earnings on retirement or disposal of the assets.

Leasehold rights and amortisation

Leasehold rights of hotel units are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses (if any). Amortisation of leasehold rights is calculated by reference to

their cost on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

The amortisation is included in determining income.
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6.11

6.12

6.13

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recorded at cost, which equals to the excess of cost of business
combination over the fair value of the net assets acquired. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired exceeds the cost of business combination, the excess is immediately

recognised as gain in profit or loss.

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the Company’s cash generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. The Company
estimates the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future

periods.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by,
the Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with

the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own
a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the
Company, key management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the

planning and direction of the Company’s operations.
Long-term leases

Leases of property, plant or equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period. The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over

the useful life of the asset.
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Leases of property, plant or equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease

term.

6.14 Foreign currencies

6.15

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is
also the Company's functional currency. Iltems on each entity included in the
consolidated financial statements are measured using the functional currency of that
entity.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting

period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries perform
impairment reviews in respect of the property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be
impaired. The Company and its subsidiaries also carry out annual impairment reviews
in respect of goodwill. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount
of an asset, which is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use, is less than the carrying amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on
information available, reflects the amouht that the Company and its subsidiaries could
obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between

knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. However in cases where property,
plant and equipment was previously revalued and the revaluation was taken to equity,
a part of such impairment is recognised in equity up to the amount of the previous

revaluation.
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6.16

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company and its
subsidiaries estimate the asset's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased
carrying amount of the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not
exceed the camying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal, which exceeds
the carrying amount that would have been determined, is treated as a revaluation increase.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised

as expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company, its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident
fund. The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Company and its
subsidiaries. The fund's assets are held in a separate trust fund and the Company and its

subsidiaries' contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance
payments they must make to employees upon retirement under labor law and other
employee benefit plans. The Company and its subsidiaries treat these severance
payment obligations as a defined benefit plan. In addition, the Company and its
subsidiaries provide other long-term employee benefits, namely long service awards.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit
plans is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on

actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income and other 1ong—te|"m benefits are

recoghised immediately in profit or loss.

The defined benefits liability and other long-term benefit liabilities comprise the present
value of the defined benefit obligation less unrecognised actuarial gains or losses.
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6.17 Provisions

6.18

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and

deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax

legislation.
Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period,
using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable
temporary differences while they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible
temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary
differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo

be utilised.

The Company and its subsidiaries record deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if
the tax relates to items that are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards
at times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding
matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported
amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates.

Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance
lease, the management is required to use judgement regarding whether significant risk
and rewards of ownership of the leased asset have been transferred, taking into

consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.
Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make
judgement and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history,
aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for
which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercise
judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to these
models is taken from observable markets, and includes consideration of liquidity,

correlation and longer-term volatility of financial instruments.
Impairment of equity investments

The Company and its subsidiaries treat available-for-sale investments and other
investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” .or “prolonged” requires judgement of the

management.
Investment properties

The Company and its subsidiaries present investment properties at the fair value
estimated by an independent appraiser, and recognises changes in the fair value in
profit or loss. The independent"appraiser valued the investment properties using the
income approach, because there is no market price that could be used to apply a
compafative approach. The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value are
described in Note 19.
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Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to
make estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the plant and equipment and
to review estimated useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

The Company and its subsidiaries measure land and buildings at revalued amounts.
Such amounts are determined by independent valuer using the Market Approach for
land, the Replacement Cost Approach for buildings. The valuation involves certain

assumptions and estimates.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for
impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined
that the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires
judgements regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets

subject to the review.
Goodwill

The initial recognition and measurement of goodwill, and subsequent impairment
testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the
asset or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unutilised
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognhised, based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long-term

employee benefits

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit
plans is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based
on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality

rate and staff turnover rate.

Litigation

The Company and its subsidiaries have contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The
Company’s and éubsidiaries’ management has used judgment to assess of the results

of the litigation and believes that no loss will result. Therefore no contingent liabilities

are recorded as at the end of reporting period.
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8.

10.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash
Bank deposits
Total

{(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial

statements statements

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
6,274 6,667 182 194
364,554 566,197 17,001 63,204
370,828 671,864 17,183 53,398

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits in saving accounts and fixed deposits carried
interest rates between 0.50% and 1.60% per annum (2012: between 0.625% and

0.75% per annum).

Restricted deposits at financial institution

These represent deposits pledged with a financial institution as security for bank

guarantee facilities of a subsidiary.

Trade and other recelvables

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable - hotel operations
Less: Allowance for doublful accounts
Trade accounts receivable - hotel operations, net
Trade accounts recelvable - sales of property
- Installmenls due
Gurrent portion of long-term trade
accounts recelvable {Note 15)
Trade accounts receivable - sales of property, net
Trade accounts receivable - sales of holiday club
membershlps
- Installments due
Current portion of long-term trade
accounts receivable (Note 15)
Total
Less: Aliowance for doublful accounis
Trade accounts recelvable - sales of holiday club
memberships, net

Trade accounts receivable - net

{Unit; Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financlal statements

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
321,048 286,227 1,890 3,386
(12,308) (12,740} {51)
308,738 273,467 1,890 3,335

22,891 2,439 11,573

81,670 90,680 3,246 25,564
104,561 93,119 14,819 25,684
10,041 11,565 -

29,284 32,961 - -
39,325 44,526 - .

(2,600) (2,600) - -
36,725 41,926 - -
450,024 408,532 16,709 28,919
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012

Other recelvables
Amounts due from related parties (Note 11) 53,004 64,076 166,471 121,659
Other receivables 30,375 B.439 1,854 4,530
Insurance claim receivable 327 B8 - -
Accrued other income 13,007 3,557 331 2,503
Interest recelvable 104 B68 166 550
Accrued rental 31,179 37,769 31,179 25,193
Tolal other receivables 128,966 114,584 169,001 164,435
Trade and other recelvables, net 579,010 523,116 205,710 183,354

The balances of trade accounts receivable - hotel operations as at 31 December 2013
and 2012, aged on the basis of due dates, are summarised below.

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financlal statements
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2042
Age of receivables
Not yet due 143,017 131,079 244 1,304
Past due
Up to 30 days 82,865 101,983 616 1,234
31 - 60 days 22,343 18,448 493 585
61 - 90 days 8,760 5,698 338 123
91 - 120 days 11,037 6,690 199 89
Over 120 days 53,024 22,329 - 51
Total 321,046 286,227 1,890 3,385
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (12,308) {12,740} - (51)
Trade accounls recaivable - hotel operations, net 308,738 273,487 1,890 : 3,335

The balances of installments due of trade accounts receivable - sales of property as at
31 December 2013 and 2012, aged on the basis of due dates, are summarised below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
Age of receivables
Not yet due 22,891 2,439 11,573 -
Trade accounts receivable - sales of property
-installment due, net 22,891 2,439 11,573 -
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1.

The balances of installments due of trade accounts receivable - holiday club
memberships as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, aged on the basis of due dates, are
summarised below.

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financlal statements
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
Age of receivables
Past due
Up lo 30 days 3,501 4,970 - -
1 - 60 days 610 659 -
61- 90 days 497 417 - -
91 - 120 days 465 444 : - -
Over 120 days 4,968 5,075 - -
Total 10,041 11,565 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debls (2,600) {2,600) - -
Trade accounis receivable - sales of haliday
7.441 8,965 - -

club membership - Instaliment due, net

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business
transactions with related parties. Such transactions, which are summarised below,
arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and

bases agreed upon between the Company, its subsidiaries and those related parties.

{Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements Transfer pricing policy

2013 2012 2013 2012

Transactions with subsidiary companies
{eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)

inter resori payments - - 6 3 (1) agreed basis
Eslale service expenses - - 1 3 (2)at market price
Guarantee fee income - - 1 1 (3) agreed basis
Guarantee fee expenses - - 3 6 (3) agreed basis
Interest income - - 128 110 (5) agreement
Interest expenses - - 48 12 (5) agreement
Management fee income - - 87 2 (7), (19) agreement
Purchase of gallery vouchers - - - 1 (8) agreed basis
Reimbursement receipts - - 11 33 (1) agreed basis
Reimbursement payments - - 26 28 (11) agreed basis
Rental and service income - - 12 12 {(12)(i), {iii) agreement
Rental and service expenses - - 11 14 {(12)(iv), (v) agreement
Resort service expenses - - 7 10 (14) agreed basis
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Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

{Unit: Million Baht)

Transfer pricing poficy

2013 2012 2013 2012

Transaclions with subsidiary companies (continued)
(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)
Sale of assets - - 7 -
Dividend received - - - 30
Transactions with associated companies
Inter resort receipts 3 9 - -
Reimbursement receipts - 5 - -
Reimbursement payments 1 1 - -
Rental and service expenses 1 - -
Sale of goods 2 - - -
Dividend received 85 - - -
Transactions with related companies
Credit card commission receipts 1 1 - -
Inter resort payments 100 98 - -
Management fee income 3 2 1 1
Management fee expenses 272 261 - -
Purchase of spa and gallery

vouchers 9 6 3 2
Sale of goods 35 48 - -
Reimbursement receipts 63 56 3 4
Reimbursement payments 59 74 3 6
Rental and service income 36 39 - -
Rental and service expenses 1 1 - -
Rental return on hotel units 4 4 - -
Resort service income 8 8 - -
Spa service expenses 1 1 - -
Training charges 9 13 1 7
Sale of gallery vouchers 4 8 - -
Dividend paid - 28 - -
Transactions with management and directors
Interest income 1 3 1 2

At net book value

As declared

(1) agreed basis
{11) agreed basis
{11) agreed basis
(12){i) agreement
(9) agreed basis

As declared

(1) agreed basis
(1) agreed basis
(7), (17}, (18) agreement
(8), (15), (18) agreement

(8) agreed basis
(9) agreed basis
(11) agreed basis
{(11) agreed basis
(12)(1), (i), (v}, {vi), (vii)

agreement
(12)(viity agreement
(13} agreement
(14) agreed basis
(20} agreed basis
(10) agreed basis
(8) agreed basis
As declared

(4) agreement
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The nature, pricing policy and agreements relating to the above transactions are

summarised as follows:

(1)

()

3)

(4)

()

These charges relate to goods and services that are consumed by customers in
one part of Laguna Phuket but are billed centrally to the customer at the hotel at
which the customer is staying. Such charges relate to meals at restaurants, golf
fees, treatments at the spa and goods purchased at shops in the resort. On
receiving the funds centrally from the customer, the hotel reimburses the company
in which the goods and services are consumed. Actual receipts are paid and
handling charges are not charged with the exception of credit card whereby
commission is charged ranging from 2% to 5% of the revenue and are based on
the commissions charged by the credit card companies. Such inter resort charges
are also incurred at the Banyan Tree Bangkok and Banyan Tree Lijiang primarily

for treatments at the spa and goods purchased at the shops.

Estate maintenance and service charges by Laguna Grande Limited in respect of
providing services such as pool cleaning service, gardening service, etc to

residential projects in Laguna Phuket which charges are at market price.

Guarantee fee among group companies for permitting their assets to be pledged
as collateral for other related companies' bank loans by charging on 1% of

proportion of value of pledged assets to total loan facilities.

Financial assistance provided to employees for acquisition of a property
developed by the Company or its subsidiaries. A staff advance of 10% of selling
price of a property is funded by the employee’s employer and is repayable by the
employee over a period of 5 years with monthly repayments consisting of both
interest and principal. A loan by the developer equal to 80% of selling price is to
be settled in full with the property developer within 5 years of the property
completion. Both advance and loan are subject to interest at the group’s cost of

funds plus 0.5% per annum.

Loans to subsidiaries and between group companies are unsecured and are
denominated in Thai Baht. The Baht loans carry interest at a rate equal to the
lenders’ borrowing costs per annum (based upon commercial bank's interest
rates) plus a margin of 1.1%. The loans are repayable on demand, however it is
expected that those loans would not be called for repayment in the short-term.
Therefore such loans are recorded as non-current assets/liabilities in the

statements of financial position.
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(6)

The terms of the operating agreements are disclosed in Note 36 and consist of a

royalty agreement, hotel management agreement and technical assistance

agreement. The payment terms of the contracts are as follows:

Royalty fee paid for the use of "Banyan Tree" and “Angsana” trademarks and all

other proprietary rights associated with it.

(i)

(i)

(iil)

Banyan Tree Phuket (Laguna Banyan Tree Limited) pays a royalty fee of 2%

of total revenue.

Banyan Tree Bangkok (Thai Wah Plaza Limited) and Angsana Laguna
Phuket (Bangtao Grande Limited) pay a royalty fee of 3% of total revenue.

Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited and Banyan Tree Gallery
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. pay a royalty fee of 1% of total revenue.

Hotel management and technical assistance fees.

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

The Technical Assistance Agreement of the Banyan Tree Phuket pays a
technical fee of 7.5% of gross operating profit.

The Technical Assistance Agreement to conduct the golf business pays a
basic technical fee of 3% of total revenue and an incentive fee of 10% of
gross operating profit which was terminated since August 2013.

The Hotel Management Agreement of the Banyan Tree Bangkok and the
Angsana Laguna Phuket pay a hotel management fee of 10% of gross

operating profit.

In addition, pursuant to the hotel management and technical assistance
agreements, expenses relating to the sharing of group marketing costs such
as promotional campalgns and adverts, sales staff salarles central
reservations and international sales offices incurred by the Banyan Tree
andfor Angsana corporate head office shall be charged as follows:

- Group marketing services shared on a group basis are based on 1.75%
of actual hotel revenues plus a share of operating cost of Regional

Marketing offices.

- Reservation service fees are 1% of room revenue plus USD 12 per

booking sourced through third party channels.
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{7)

8

(9)

(10)

(11)

All management fees are consistent with industry practice and the sharing of
group marketing costs incurred by Banyan Tree Phuket, Banyan Tree Bangkok
and Angsana Laguna Phuket are the reimbursement of costs benefiting each of
the hotels. As a result, these transactions are on normal commercial terms and

conditions.

The Company provides project management services, the coniracted fee is set at
a rate of 5% of the actual or budgeted costs of the project.

Purchase of Banyan Tree Spa and Banyan Tree Gallery vouchers for distribution
to management to provide an additional benefit scheme. The vouchers are issued
yearly to qualifying executives and are valid only within the year of issue. The
voucher is priced at the face value of the voucher.

These transactions relate to:

() Sale of goods from Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited to related
companies is priced at a 15% to 30% discount to the retail price depending
on the volume purchased.

(i) Sale of guest and spa supplies of high volume purchases from companies
which operate galleries to related companies is priced at cost plus 20% to
30% (2012: 35% to 55%) margin.

Training charges by Banyan Tree Resorts & Spas (Thailand) Company Limited

and Banyan Tree Hotels & Resorts (Thailand) Limited in respect of providing

centralised training facilities and courses for staff. The training costs are allocated
to each operation based on actual cost.

Costs are often incurred within the group which is reimbursed by the company to

which the expense relates. Actual costs are reimbursed with no handling costs

applied.

Rental paid for premises and land. The rental periods are not over three- years,

except some transactions as stated in 12(j).

(i) Rental and service fee is on the basis of 5% to 10% of sales revenue which
is dependent on criteria such as the location, budgeted sales, term of the

lease, size of area leased and type of operation.

Payee Payer Rental Period Expiry Date
BGL BTRS(T) 30 years November 2041
LBTL BTR&(T) 10 years December 2015
BGL : Bangtao Grande Limited

BTRS(T} : Banyan Tree Resorls & Spas (Thailand) Company Limited

LBTL : Laguna Banyan Tree Limited
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(13)

(14)

(13)

(i) Rental and service income for space in Banyan Tree Phuket for Banyan

Tree Spa office and store are Baht 1,105 per square metre per month.

(i) Rental of space and service in Canal Village. The charges include rental and

related service fees which are at market rate.

(iv) Rental and service income earned by Thai Wah Plaza Limited for renting the
office space at Thai Wah Tower | and {l. The charges include rental and

related service fees which are at market rate.

(v} Rental of land and lagoon on which hotel and hotel - related operations are
located are Baht 113,908 and Baht 11,391 per rai per annum respectively.

(vi) Service income from rental of Banyan Tree Management Academy is at
Baht 125,000 per month.

(vii) Rental of land on which Spa premises are located is on the basis of Baht 0.7

million per annum.

(viii) Rental and service fee for Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore)'s office, monthly
rental is SGD 34.56 per square metre.

This relates to a Management Agréement to manage the hotel units of Cheer
Golden Limited in the Angsana Resort & Spa on Bintan Island, Indonesia under
which Cheer Golden Limited receives a return of 15% per annum on the

investment of the leasehold rights.

Resort service charged to the operations relates to revenue of Laguna Service
Company Limited which provides centralised services to each operation in the

group located at Laguna Phuket at the following rates:

- Water supply - at the determined price and actual usage
- Laundry charge : atthe price based on cost plus a certain margin

- Common area services, : based on actual cost

transportation charges

- Staff buses © at the price based on cost plus a certain margin

- Marketing fee - atthe rate of 1% of each operations’ actual
revenue

- Community service :  based on actual cost

This relates to architectural and interior design services. The fees are based on
construction cost at progressive rates depending on the type of constructions and
services provided. The fees are consistent with industry practice. As a result,

these transactions are on normal commercial terms and conditions.
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(16) This related to technical service for pre-construction and pre-opening of Angsana
Laguna Phuket in 2011 and 2012, totaling USD 0.5 miltion.

(17) The Company charges a management fee to Banyan Tree Resorts & Spas
(Thailand) Company Limited for providing administration services of information
technology and human resources. The monthly fee is Baht 55,000.

(18) The Technical Assistance Agreement of Laguna Excursions Limited is providing
management services and granting the use of leading brand for the recreation
department of Banyan Tree Bintan and Angsana Bintan hotels. The technical
service fees include a technical services fee at rate of 12.5% of recreation
revenue, an incentive fee at the rate of 31% of earnings before interest, tax,

depreciation and amortisation, and a royalty fee at the rate of 5% of revenue.

(19) The Company charges a management fee to its subsidiaries for providing
centralized duties and services for each operation in the group. The monthly fixed
rate is charged dependent on the department serviced, except the internal audit
service is charge by the working hours and project management service is
charged as Note (7) above.

(20) This relates to the purchase of spa vouchers by Laguna Holiday Club Limited from
Banyan Tree Resorts & Spas (Thailand) Company Limited, for using as a
marketing tool, which is priced at a 20% to 40% discount to the Spa price list.

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of letters of guarantee issued to
banks to guarantee facilities of its subsidiaries as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Overdrafts and bank guarantee facilities 106 106

Subsidiaries have contingent liabilities in respec‘,t' of letters of guarantee issued to banks
to guarantee facilities of the Company and other subsidiaries as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Short-term loan facilities 170 170
Overdrafts and bank guarantee facilities 10 10
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balances of the accounts between the

Company and those related companies are as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
Amounts due from related parties
Subsidiaries - - 153,156 116,830
Associated companies 594 9,601 - 2,613
Related companies (related by
common shareholders) 53,310 54,474 2,315 2,216
Total amounts due from related
partles (Note 10) 53,904 64,075 156,471 121,659
Amounts due to related parties
" Subsidiaries - . 8,546 10,439
Associated companies 70 58 - -
Related companies (related by
common shareholders} 65,444 109,402 1,542 5,328
Total amounts due to related parties
(Note 23) 65,514 109,460 10,088 15,767

Loans to subsidiaries and employees and long-term loans from subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balance of loans between the Company,

employees and those related companies and the movement are as follows:

Long-term loans to subsidiaries

(Unit; Theusand Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2012 Addition Repayment 31 December 2013
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited 985,100 377,500 (255,000) 1,107,600
Laguna Holiday Club Limited 54,380 66,500 {108,500) 12,380
Laguna Lakes Limited 441,001 2,500 (5,500) 438,001
TWR-Holdings Limited 210,420 574,300 {394,700) 390,020
Total 1,690,901 1,020,800 (763,700) 1,948 001

Long-term loans to employees

Employees of the companies

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
Bangtac Grande Limited

Laguna Grande Limited

Laguna Holiday Club Limited

Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited

Thai Wah Plaza Limited

Total

31 December 31 December

2012 Repayment 2013

163 (140} 23

265 (265) -

453 (453) -

49 (49) -

167 (126) 41

996 (877) 119
2,093 {1,10) 183
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Employees of the companies Separate financial statements
31 December 31 December
2012 Repayment 2013
Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited 163 (140) 23

Long-term loans to employees related to loans for property purchased under the
Group's employee financing scheme and loans for flood relief. The loans for property
purchased under the Group’s employee financing scheme are charged with interest at
the rate of the Group's cost of funds plus a margin of 0.5%. The loans are repayable
within 5 years commencing from the date on which the loan is drawn down. The loans
for flood relief are for repairing employees houses which were damaged in the 2011
Bangkok flood. These loans are interest free and repayable within 4 months to 2 years.

Long-term loans from subsidiaries
{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2012 Addition Repayment 31 December 2013
Laguna Grande Limited 669,650 734,500 {733,200) 670,950
Laguna (3) Limited - 4,000 (1,100) 2,800
Total 669,650 738,500 {734,300) 673,850

Directors and management's benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries
had employee benefit expenses of their directors and management as below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Short-term employee benefits 98,581 94,734 63,072 74,822
Post-employment benefits 647 1,469 504 782
Other long-term employee benefits 31 27 19 (1)
Total 99,259 96,230 63,595 75,603

Guarantee obligations with related parties

The Company has outstanding guarantee obligations with its related parties, as
described in Note 37 b).
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12. Inventories

{(Unit: Thousand Baht}

Consolidated financial statements

Reduce cosf {o net

Cost realisable value Inventories-net

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Food and beverage 21,665 20,386 - - 21,665 20,286
Finished goods and supplies 103,311 116,441 (1,844) (3,404) 101,467 113,037
Total 124,976 136,827 (1,844) (3,404) 123,132 133,423

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Reduce cost to net

Cost realisable value Inventories-net

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Food and beverage - 21 - - - 21
Finished goods and supplies - 157 - (73 - 84
Total . 178 - (73) - 105

13. Property development cost
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial

statements statements

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012

Property for sale under holiday club memberships 434,198 459,117 - -
Completed buildings 718,808 969,408 123,225 233,256
Land 1,871,750 719,800 113,034 3,202
Leasehold land 44,041 44 041 - -
Property under construction 437,435 286,562 8,795 8,785
3,506,232 2,478,928 245,054 245,343

Less: Allowance for diminution in market
value of property under construction (91,418) {91,418} - -
Property development cost - net 3,414,814 2,387,510 245,054 245,343
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14.

15.

15.1

15.2

Subsidiaries have mortgaged property development cost amounting to Baht 616 million

(2012: Baht 369 million) as collateral against its credit facilities received from financial

institutions.

Other current assets

Consolidated financial

statements

(Unit; Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements

31 December

31 December

31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
Value added tax 49,861 62,864 10,818 16,390
Prepaid expenses and withholding
tax deducted at source 71,970 84,774 7,594 9,084
Advances to suppliers and staffs 62,913 27,732 3,501 2,289
Income tax and VAT refundable 20,028 16,867 5012 3,207
Total 204,772 192,237 26,925 30,970

Long-term trade accounts receivable

Long-term trade accounts receivable consist of:

Installments receivable from property sales which bear interest at a rate of 5.0% -

12.0%, MLR plus 0.5% - 1.0% and the group's cost of funds plus 0.5% per annum and

installments are repaid over a period of 3 to 15 years.

Installments receivable from sales of holiday club memberships which bear interest at a

rate of 7.5% - 9.0% per annum and installments are repaid over a period of 2 to 5 years.

Long-term trade accounts receivable are due as follows:

Current portion of long-term trade
accounts receivable
Long-term trade accounts receivable
Total
Sales of property
Within 1 year (Note 10)
Qver 1 year to 5 years
Qver 5 years
Long-term trade accounts receivable -
sales of property

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
110,954 123,641
144,443 160,078
255,397 283,719

81,670 90,680
136,019 142,545
- 5,010
217,689 238,235

31




Sales of holiday club memberships
Within 1 year (Note 10)
Over 1 year to 5 years

Long-term trade accounts receivable -
sales of holiday club memberships

Total

Current portion of long-term trade
accounts receivable
Long-term trade accounts receivable

Total

Sales of property
Within 1 year (Note 10)
Over 1 year to 5 years
Over 5 years
Long-term trade accounts receivable -
sales of property

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
29,284 32,961
8,424 12,523
37,708 45,484
255,397 283,719

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

3,246 25,684
14,063 24,890
17,309 50,474
3,246 25,584
14,063 22,442

- 2,448

17,309 50,474
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16.

Investments in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are

as foliows:

Company's name

Pald-up caplial

Dividend received

Shareholding parcentags Cosl during the yaar

Subsld]aries held by the Company

Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapora)
Pte Limlted

Banyan Tree Gallery {Thalland) Limited

Laguna Banyan Tree Limhted"

Laguna Holiday Club Limlled

Laguna Grande Limlied

Laguna Lakes Limitad

Laguna Service Company Limied™

Laguna (3) Limlted

TWR - HoldIngs Umlted

31 December

39 December 31 December 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December 31 December 31 Decembar

Subasldiaries held through TWR - Holdings Limited

Laguna Excurslons Limited
Laguna Village Limited
Mae Chan Proparly Company Limited

Pal Samar Devalopment Company Limited

Phuket Resorl Developmeni Limited
PT AVC Indonesla

Talang Development Company Limited
Thal Wah Plaza Limlted

Thal Wah Tower Company Limited
Thai Wah Tower {2) Company Limited

Twin Walers Deyslopmant Company Limited

Subsldlarles held through Laguna Grande Limited

Bangtac {1} Limiled

Bangtao (2) Limlted

Banglac (3) Limlled

Bangtao (4) Limited

Bangtao Development Limlted

Banglao Granda Limited

L.aguna Cenlral Uimhed

Subsidl eld throuw;

Lifiang Banyan Tree Gallery Trading
Company Limited

Banyan Tree Galle

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2042 2013 2012
Million Baht Millton Baht % % Million Baht  Milion Baht  Millen Bahl  Mililon Baht
5G0 043 SGD043 51.0 51.0 40 4.0 - 193

Milllon Willion

7.a 78 51.0 510 4.0 4.0 - 103

500.0 500.0 100.0 1000 B36.1 835.1 - -
3300 3300 100.0 100.0 330.0 330.0 - -
1,000.0 1,000.0 100.0 1000 984.8 884.8 - -
10 1.0 84.9 849 09 0.8 - -
80,6 90.5 72.9 729 224 224 - -
01 0.1 100.0 1000 47.8 47.8 - -
1.250.0 1,250.0 199.0 100.0 1,2560.0 1,250.0 - -
8.0 8.0 40.0 490 - - - -
6.0 6.0 100,0 1000 - - - -
2323 232.3 100.0 100.0 - - - -
284 28.4 100.0 100.9 - - - -
414 41.4 100.0 100,09 - - - -
usbo.e USD 0.8 100.0 1000 - - - -

Million Milllon
2510 25%.0 50.0 50.0 - - - -
2,250.0 2,250.0 100.0 100.0 - - - -
455.0 455,0 100.0 100.0 - - - -
210 21.0 100.0 1000 - - - -
214.4 214.4 100.0 1000 - - - -
209 20,9 100.0 100.0 - - - -
1914 191 1000 1000 - - - -
2] 7.8 100.0 1000 - - - -
14.6 14.6 100.0 1000 - - - -
200 80.0 100.0 1000 - - - -
1.548.0 1,646,0 100.0 1000 - - - -
1.0 1.0 85.0 B5.0 - - - -

UsD7s

Thousands

Subsfdjary held through Laguna Hollday Club L Imite;

Chaar Golden Limlted

Total Investmants In subsldlarles

Sinpapore] Pte Limite

usb 76 51,0 51.0 - - - -

Thousands

- 100.0 1000

3,476.0 3,479.0 - 29,8

{1) Laguna Banyan Tree Limiled is held 46% by the Company and 51% lhrough TWR - Holdings Limited

(2)  Laguna Services Company Limiled Is held by the Company and 2 subsidiaries
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A subsidiary has a 49% shareholding in Laguna Excursions Limited. However, the

subsidiary has recognised its share of the income of this subsidiary at 100% after

deducting the cumulative preferential annual dividend of 15% of the par value of the

preference shares, in accordance with the income sharing percentage in the Articles of

Association.

Significant transactions regarding the investments in subsidiary companies during 2012

to 2013 are as follows:

(a)

(¢}

On 27 January 2012, a subsidiary in Indonesia approved an increase of the paid
up capital by USD 150,000 from USD 700,000 to USD 850,000 divided into 85,000
ordinary shares with par value of USD 10 per share.

On 17 April 2012, the Minister of Law and Human right of The Republic of
Indonesia accepted the paid up capital from USD 700,000 to USD 850,000
following with the registered capital of USD 2,335,000.

On 24 December 2012, the Company purchased an additional 76,667 ordinary
shares of Laguna Grande Limited from its subsidiary at the net book value of Baht
70 million. However, such transaction does not affect the shareholding proportion
in the consolidation financial statements.

Goodwill

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial

statements

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
(Restated)
Goodwill from purchase of shares in subsidiaries:
Thai Wah Plaza Limited 56,076 56,976
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited 350,928 360,928
Total 407,904 407,904
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17.

17.1 Details of associates:

Investments in associates

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statemenis

Nalure of Country of Carrying amounts based
Company' name business incorporation Shareholding percentage Cost on equily method
31 December 31 Decomber 31 December 31 December 31 December 37 December
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(%} (%)
Lijlang Banyan Tree Hotel Hotel operalions The People's 49 49 348,414 348,414 456,568 516,305
Co., Ld. and property Republle of
development China
Tropical Resonts Lid, Holding compaty Heng Kong 26 26 17,673 17,672 - -
Lesa: Allswance for Impairment of Investiment {17,673) (17 ,673)
Total invesiments in associales - nat 348,414 348,414 456,568 516,308

Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co., Ltd., held by Laguna Banyan Tree Limited, was

incorporated in the People’s Republic of China and is engaged in the hotel business

and property development.

Tropical Resorts Ltd., held by TWR - Holdings Limited and Laguna Banyan Tree
Limited, was incorporated in Hong Kong and is engaged in investment holding.

17.2 Share of loss

During the years, the subsidiary has recognised their share of loss from investment in

associate company in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Company’s name

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial
statements

Share of loss from
investment in associate
during the years

Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co., Ltd.

2013 2012
(21,066) (5,428)
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17.3 Summarised financial information of associates

17.4

18.

Financial information of the associates is summarised below.

Tola! revenue

{Unll: Millicn Bahl)

Company’s namea Pald-up capilal as al Tolal assels a5 at Toval lebllitles as Bt forihe years ended L.oss for the years ended
ND no D o 31D 31 D b 3D 31D b D a1 D MDD
20713 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Lijlang Banyan Trae Hola| usp 184 UsD 18.4 1,887 2127 1.044 1,080 413 5§22 [F)] {11}
Cao., Lid. mililon milllon
Troplcal Resorls Lid. usD 21.0 uspno 1,789 1,724 2,081 1479 480 521 {305} @)
milllon milion

The value of investments in associates, accounted for under the equity method was

calculated based on unaudited financial statements of the companies prepared by their

management.

The subsidiaries recognised its share of losses from the investments in Tropical Resorts

Ltd. until the value of the investments approached zero. Subsequent losses incurred by

those associates have not been recognised in the subsidiaries’ accounts since the

subsidiaries have no obligations, whether legal or constructive, to make any payments

on behalf of the associates.

Other long-term investments

Investment in available-for-sale securlty

Thai Wah Starch Public Company Limited
(Formerly known as "Universal Starch Public
Company Limited")

Less: Allowance for impairment of investment

Unrealised gain on available-for-sale security

Total Investment in available-for-sale security - net

Investments in other companles
Bibace Investments Ltd.
Banyan Tree Indochina Hospitality Fund, L.P.

Total investments in other companies

Total other long-term investments - net

Consolidated financial

statemenis

{Unit:

Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statemnents

31 Decernber 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 . 2013 2012
334,627 334,627 31,161 31,161
(89,339)  (334,627) - (31,161)
245,288 - 31,161 -
- - 214,127 -
245,288 - 245,288 -
188,425 188,425 - -
417,939 355,008 . .
606,364 544,333 - -
851,652 544,333 245,288 -
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19.

The Company has a 16.27% equity stake or 12,775,406 shares in Thai Wah Starch
Public Company Limited (TWS) (formerly known as Universal Starch Public Company
Limited). On 3 July 2006, the Stock Exchange of Thailand ("SET") moved TWS's
securities to Non-Performing Group and, consequently, TWS shares have ceased
trading on SET since then. SET has approved the resumption of trading of TWS shares
on SET on 31 October 2013. In connection therewith, the Company, being a significant
shareholder of TWS, is subjected to a moratorium period of not being able to sell or
trade in TWS shares for a period of 6 months from 31 October 2013. Thereafter, the
Company can sell up to 25% of its TWS shares and the remaining 75% after 1 year
from 31 October 2013. Since December 2008, an allowance for impairment amounting
to Baht 334 million had been fully set up for the Company's investment in TWS in the

consolidated financial statements.

During the current year, the Company has reversed allowance for impairment of
investment in TWS in consolidated financial statements amounting to Baht 245 million
(Separate financial statements: Baht 31 million).

Investment properties

{Unit: Thousand Baht}

Consolidated financhal statements

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Units in Units in
Land office Land . office
awaiting for building and awaiting for bullding and
development shops develbpmenl shops
f sales for rent Total ! sales for rent Total
Balance al beginning of year 354,300 722,244 1,076,544 168,300 641,040 800,340
Transfer from property, plant and
equipment - - - 195,000 - 195,000
Net gain from a falr value adjusiment 3775 20,316 24,091 - 81,204 81,204
Balance at end of year 358,075 742 580 1,100,635 554,300 722,244 1,076,544
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{Unit: Thousand Baht}

Separale financial staterments

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Unlts in Units in
Land office Land Office
awalling for building and awalting for building and
development shops development shops
I sales for rent Total / sales for rent Total
Balance at beginning of year 139,671 31,244 169,915 62,538 12,040 81,578
Transfer from property, plant and
equipment - - - 76,133 - 76,133
Net gain {loss) from a fair value adjustment (3,533) 2,616 {917) - 12,204 12,204
Balance at end of year 135,138 33,860 168,998 138,671 31,244 169,915

The fair value of the investment properties has been determined based on valuations
performed by an accredited independent valuer, using the basis as follows:

- Land awaiting development / sales was revalued using the Market Approach.
- Units in office building and shops for rent were revalued using the Income Approach.

The main assumptions used in the valuation are yield rate, long-term vacancy rate and

long-term growth in real rental rates.

In 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries transferred land to investment properties
amounting to Baht 195 million because the management plans to develop investment

properties.

As at 31 December 2013, the subsidiaries have pledged investment properties
amounting to approximately Baht 709 million (2012; Baht 691 million) as collateral
against credit facilities received from financial institutions.
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21.

The Company and subsidiaries arranged for an independent professional valuer to re-
appraise the value of certain assets in the report dated 24 December 2013 on an asset-

by-asset basis. The basis of the revaluation was as follows:
- Land was revalued using the Market Approach.

- Buildings were revalued using the Replacement Cost Approach.

As at 31 December 2013, certain buildings and equipment of the Company and its
subsidiaries have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The gross carrying amount,
before deducting accumulated depreciation, of those assets amounted to Baht 1,678
million (2012: Baht 2,458 million). (Separate financial statements: Baht 17 million, 2012:
Baht 27 million).

The subsidiaries have mortgaged land and hotel buildings at fair value of Baht 6,725
million (2012: Baht 8,122 million) as collateral against credit facilities received from

financial institutions.

Leasehold rights
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Hotel units
Cost
As at 31 December 2012 49,225
Exchange rate adjustment 2013 705
As at 31 December 2013 49,930
Accumulated amortisation
As at 31 December 2012 (24,459)
Amortisation of 2013 (2,958)
As at 31 December 2013 (27,017)
Net book value
As at 31 December 2012 24,766
As at 31 December 2013 22,913
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22,

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Hotel units
Cost
As at 1 January 2012 48,534
Exchange rate adjustment 2012 691
As at 31 December 2012 49,225
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 January 2012 (21,868)
Amortisation of 2012 (2,591)
As at 31 December 2012 (24,459)
Net book value
As at 1 January 2012 26,666
As at 31 December 2012 24,766

Leasehold rights of hotel units are amortised over the term of the lease of 20 years from
July 2002 to June 2022,

Short-term loans from financial institutions

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Interest rate 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
(percent per annum} 2013 2012 2013 2012
Short-term loans from
financial institutions 3.54 - 3.55 170,000 - 150,000
Total 170,000 . 150,000

These short-term loans from financial institutions are secured by the mortgage of plots of
land and hotel buildings of the Company and its subsidiaries, as described in Note 20 and
by the guarantee provided by subsidiaries.
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23,

24,

25,

Trade and other payables

Trade accounts payable

Amounts due to related parlies (Note 11)
Accrued expenses

Other payables

Construction payables

Service charge payable to hotel staff

Accrued rental to villa owners

Total

Other current liabilities

Value added tax payable
Unearned income
Other tax payable

Short-term provision

Total

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht}

Separate financial statements

31 December 31 December 31 Decamber 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
171,435 186,759 1,536 5,701
65,514 109,460 10,068 15,767
211,694 224,535 25,639 24,570
40,279 52,988 5,064 566
23,632 17,584 4,461
31,243 38,575 )
64,777 62,038 8,897 0,816
608,574 690,935 51,224 60,801

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht}

Separate financial statements

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
52,161 47,762 3915 1,790
48,133 61,580 - -
12,807 16,809 754 3,868
6,037 2,206 2,819 150
119,138 129,057 7,488 5,808

Long-term loans from financial institutions

Secured

Long-term loans are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year
Over 1 year to 5 years

QOver 5 years

Total

Consolidated financial

statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
2,970,326 3,397,277 175,000 245,000

457,000 422 951 70,000 70,000
2,103,526 2,165,547 105,000 175,000

409,800 808,779 - -
2,513,326 2,974,326 105,000 175,000
2,970,326 3,397,277 175,000 245,000
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Long-term loans consist of the following:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial

statements staternenls

31 Decemnber 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 a2 2013 2012
The Company
(1) Baht loan from a bank, with a facllity of Baht 420 million

repayable quarterly from July 2010 to April 2016,

at an interest rale as follows:

2012 onwards: MLR less 1%, 1.56% and 1,75% per annum 175,000 245,000 175,000 245000
Subsidiaries
(2) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facllity of Baht 1,004 milllon,

repayable quarterly from December 2005 to Dacember 2013,

at an interest rate as follows:

2012 onwards; MLR tess 1,5% per annum - 146,951 - -

{3) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 100 million,

repayable quarterly from July 2008 to April 2014, at an

interest rate as follows:

2012 onwards: MLR less 1.5% per annum 30,000 65,000 - -
(4) Baht loan from a bank, with a facilily of Baht 1,000 million'®

repayable quarterly from October 2009 to April 2049, atan

interest rate as follows:

2012 onwards: MLR less 0.56%, 1% and 1.6% per annum 863,300 883,800 - -
(5) Bahlloan from a bank, wilh a facility of Baht 145 million

repayable quarterly from August 2010 to May 2018,

at an interest rate as follows:

2012 onwards: MLR less 1% and 1.5% per annum 134,500 137,500 - -
(6) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 700 million®

repayable quarterly from Aprit 2012 to January 2016, at an

interest rate as follows:

2012 onwards: MLR less 1% and 1.25% per annum 364,687 503,687 - -
(7) Baht loan from a bank, with a facllity of Baht 800 milllion®®

repayable quarterly Irom June 2014 to Seplember 2018, al

an interest rate as follows:

2012 onwards: MLR less 1% and 1.25% per annum 261,729 257,729 - -
{8) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 520 million

repayable quarterly from June 2014 to March 2018, at an

interest rate as follows:

2012 onwards: MLR less 1% and 1.5% per annum 421,110 357,510 - -
{9) Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 800 million

repayable quarterly from March 2013 to December 2022, at an

interest rate as follows:

2012 onwards: MLR less 1% and 1.5% per annum 720,000 800,000 - -

Total long-term loans from financial institutions 2,870,326 3,397,277 175,000 245,000

MLR: Minimum Lending Rate

{a) Also subject to mandatory prepayment in inverse order of maturity upon the ownership transfer of property sales unils.

49




The loans are secured by mortgage of plots of land and all hotel buildings of its
subsidiaries, as described in Note 19 and Note 20. The loan in (8) above is guaranteed
by a subsidiary.

The loan agreements contain covenants as specified in the agreements that, among
other things, require the Company and its subsidiaries to maintain certain debt to equity
and debt service coverage ratios according to the agreements.

As at 31 December 2013, the long-term credit facilities of the subsidiaries which have not
yet been drawn down amounted to Baht 99 million (2012: Baht 855 million).

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which is compensations on employees’

retirement and other employee benefits plan, was as follows:
{(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Other Other

Severance  benefils Severance  benefits

payments plans Total payments plans Total
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 25,477 27,085 53,462 72,200 48,657 120,857
Current service cosl 3,303 3,923 7,226 7,285 7,272 14,557
Interest cost 914 995 1,909 3,510 2,371 5,881
Benefits paid during the year (16,516)  (11,523)  (28,038)  (11,453) (7.779)  (19,232)
Actuarial {gain) loss 13,392 6,451 19,843 (46,065) (28,827) (74,892)

- - 6,291 6,291

Past service costs

Defined benefit obligation at end of year 26,570 27,831 54,401 25,477 27,985 53,462

{(Unit: Thousand Baht}

Separate financial statements

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Other Cther

Severance  benefits Severance  benefits

payments plans Total payments plans Total
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 6,192 3,692 9,684 25,208 8,389 33,597
Current service cost 740 908 1,648 1,808 509 2,417
interest cost 222 132 354 920 166 1,086
Benefits paid during the year (3,019) (1,604) (4,623}  (10,250) (893)  (11,143)
Actuarial (gain) loss 4214 192 4,406 (11,594) (4,479) (16,073}
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 8,349 3,320 11,669 6,192 3,692 9,884
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Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the profit or loss were as follows:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Current service cost 7.226 14,557 1,648 2417
Interest cost 1,908 5,881 354 1,086
Actuarial (gain} loss recognised during the year 6,451 {28,827) 192 (4,479)
Past service costs recognised during the year - 6,291 - -
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 15,586 {(2,098) 2,194 (976)

Line items under which such expenses are included in profit or loss
Cost of sales 13,570

Selling and administrative expenses 2,016

1,150 08 (388)
(3.248) 2,096 (588)

The cumulative amount of actuartal gains recognised in the other comprehensive income

and taken as part of retained earnings of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2013 amounted to Baht 27 million (2012: Baht 38 million) (Separate
financial statements: Baht 6 million and 2012: Baht 9 million).

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows:

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2013

2012 2013 ©2M2

(% per annum) (% perannum) (% per annum) (% per annum)

Discount rate ' 4,25
Future salary increase rate 3.0
Staff turnover rate {depending on age) 10.4-304

3.75 4.25 3.75
3.0 3.0 3.0
10.4-304 104 - 30.4 10.4-30.4
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27.

28.

Amounts of defined benefit obligation for the current and previous three periods are as

follows:
{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Experience adjustments
Defined henefit obligation on the obligation
Consolidated Separate Consolidated Separate
financial financial financial financial
statements statements staternents statements
Year 2013 54,401 11,669 4,464 1,138
Year 2012 53,462 9,884 (23,990) (4,369)
Year 2011 120,857 33,597 - -
Year 2010 94,668 27,737 - -

Capital reserve

The capital reserve relates to the accounting of assets in subsidiaries at their fair values

as at the acquisition date and cannot be used for dividend payments.

Revaluation surplus

This represents surplus arising from revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial

statements statements

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated) (Restated)
Balance - beginning of year 5,096,121 5,086,904 145,585 . 139,026
Addition {reversal} of revaluation surplus on assets (1,160,903) 16,800 {8,599) 6,559
Less: Reversal of revaluation surplus on
disposal of assets - (7,583) -
Balance - end of year 3,935,218 5,008,121 136,586 145,585

The revaluation surplus can neither be offset against a deficit nor used for dividend

payment.

29. Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net profit after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of the
registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
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30. Other income

31.

Interest income

Dividend income

Gain on change in fair value
of investment properties

Management fee income

Other

Total

Expenses by nature

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
25,241 34,019 133,790 120,328
12,775 - 12,775 29,654
24,04 81,204 - 12,204
- - 88,915 -
28,911 34,264 2,282 6,104
91,018 149,487 237,762 168,190

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

Salaries, wages and other employee benefits

Depreciation

Rental expenses from operating lease
agreements

Repairs and maintenance

Water and electricity

Legal and professional fees

Management, incentive fee and royalty fees

Commission

Sales and marketing expenses

Food and beverage cost

Increase in land and construction during the year

Change in property development cost

(Unit; Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

2013 2012 2013 2012
1,258,269 1,118,558 182,935 137,616
286,248 292,209 5779 8,086
238,505 223,302 37,407 35,321
161,736 152,024 2,718 2,826
219,516 207,655 6,753 5,132
29,528 38,481 3,125 6,549
167,139 150,623 - -
131,339 100,137 - 1,046
214,966 215,117 13,127 7,247
335,792 298,718 - -
1,364,731 183,235 111,901 7,407
(1,027,304) 243,944 288 30,745
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32. Income tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are made up as

follows:

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Adjustment in respect of current income tax
of previous year

Write off prepaid withholding tax

Deferred tax:

Relating to crigination and reversal of
temporary differences

Income tax expense repotted in the

income statement

Consolidated financial

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
{Restated) {Restated)

37,634 35,240 - -

{674) 635 - -
24,902 9,566 - -
23,617 15,686 34,283 8,340
85,379 61,127 34,283 8,340

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income

for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Deferred tax relating to actuarial (gain) loss
of post-employment benefits

Deferred tax relating to unrealised gain on
available-for-sale security

Deferred tax relating to addition (reversal) of

revaluation surplus on assets

Consolidated financial

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
2,679 (9,213) 843 {2,319)
- - {42,825) -
290,226 (4,200) 2,150 {1,640)
292,905 {13,413) {39,832) {3,959)
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Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profit
multiplied by the applicable tax rates for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012

are as follows:

Consolidated financial

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate

statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
Accounting profit (loss) before income tax 202,017 97,772 119,280 (42,875)
Applicable tax rate 15%-30% 15%-30% 20% 23%
Accounting profit (loss) before tax muitipfied by
applicable tax rate 38,335 21,378 23,856 (9,861)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of
previous year (674) 635 - -
Effects of changes in the applicable tax rates - (5,230} - 2,795
Write off prepaid withholding tax 24,902 9,566 - -
Effects of:
Reversal of loss on impairment of investment (49,058) - (6,232) -
Dividend income (2,555) - (2,555) (5,910)
Differences arising from revenue recognition 10,849 1,249 10,849 1,249
Unused tax losses 33,940 11,113 - -
Non-taxable expenses 27,847 21,522 7.181 20,025
Other 1,793 894 1,184 42
Total 22,816 34,778 10,427 15,406
Income tax expense reported in the statement
of comprehensive income 85,379 61,127 34,283 8,340
The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
(Unit Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statementls
Slatements of financial position
As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012 As at 1 January 2012
(Reslated)
Deferred tax assets {llabillties)
Unutilised tax losses 164,753 172,031 174,991
Provision for long-term employee benefits 10,880 10,692 24171
Temporary differences arlsing from revenue
recognition {1.245) 10,145 42,343
Intercompany charges to property development
cosl and property, planf and equipmen 34,885 33,861 -
Other items of deferred tax assets 8,685 7,820 6,517
Revaluation surplus on assets (1,374,124} {1,702,208) {1,700,913)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financlal statements

Statements of financial position

As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012 As at1 January 2012
(Restated)
Temporary differences arising frem revenue
recognition (675,752) (697,569) (704,915)
Gain on change in fair value of investment
properlies {154,950} {111,759) (94,438)
Other ilems of deferred tax liabilities (26,371) {16,455) (4,190}
Net deferred tax liabilities (2,016,239) (2,285,633) (2,256,434}
Reflected in the statements of fimanclal position as follows:
Deferrad fax assets 81,589 86,823 59,240
Deferred tax liabilities (2,097 ,628) (2,372,356) (2,316,674)
Deferred tax liabilltles, net (2,016,239) {2,286,533) (2,256,434)

{Unit. Thousand Baht)

Separate financlal slalements

Statements of financial position

As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012 As al 1 January 2012
(Restated)
Deferred tax assets (liabllities)
Unutilised tax losses 24,235 35,983 16,337
Provlslon for long-term employee benelits 2,334 1,977 6,719
Temporary differences arising from revenue
recognition - 19,389 32,122
Other iterns of deferred lax assels 764 1,688 1,777
Revaluation surplus on assets (20,743) (38,396) {34,756)
Temporary differences arising from revenue
recognilion (94,622) (92,919) {81,846)
Gain on change in fair value of investment
properties (22,505) (8,968) {6,300)
Gain on change in value of avaltable-for-sales
securily (42,825) - -
Net deferred tax labilities (153,361) (79,2486) {66,947)
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33.

34.

In October 2011, the cabinet passed a resolution to reduce the corporate income tax rate
from 30% to 23% in 2012, and then to 20% from 2013. In addition, in order to comply with
the resolution of the cabinet, in December 2011, the decreases in tax rates for 2012 -
2014 were enacted through a royal decree. The Company has reflected the changes in
the income tax rates in its deferred tax calculation, as presented above.

As at 31 December 2013, the subsidiaries have unused tax losses totaling Baht 70 million
(2012: Baht 50 million), on which deferred tax assets have not been recognised as the
Company believes future taxable profits may not be sufficient to allow utilisation of the
unused tax losses.

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit (loss) for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

For the years ended 31 December

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012
{Restated) {Restated)
Profit (loss) attributable to equity holders
of the Company (Thousand Baht) 111,789 19,857 84,998 {61,215)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (Thousand shares) 166,683 166,683 166,683 166,683
Earnings (loss) per share (Baht/share) 0.67 0.12 0.51 (0.31)

Provident fund

The Company and its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a
provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Contributions are
made to the fund by both employees and the Company and its subsidiaries and will be
paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules of the Company

and its subsidiaries’ provident fund.
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35.

36.

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries contributed to provident funds as

follows:
(Unit; Million Baht)
Fund Manager Company's contribution in

Hotel staff Offtce staff 2013 2012

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Publlc Company MFG Asset Management Ple.  MFC Asset Management Plc. 3.6 4,2
Limied
Laguna Grande Limited MFC Asset Management Ple.  MFC Asset Management Plc. 11 13
Bangtac Grande Limited SCB Asset Management - 33 27
Company Limiled
l.aguna Banyan Tree Limited MFC Asset Management Plc.  MFC Asset management Ple. 6.1 5.5
Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) Ple Ltd - Central Provident Fund Board 1.1 1.3
Laguna Service Company Limited - MFC Assel Management Plc. 27 2.8
Laguna Holiday Club Limited - MFC Asset Management Ple. 1.2 17
Thal Wah Plaza Limited TISCO Assets Management MFC Asset Management Plc. 3.9 38
Company Limited
Dividends
Dividends declared in 2013 consisted of:
Approved by Total dividend  Dividend per share
(Million Baht) (Baht)
Dividend on 2012 Annual General Meeting of the
retained earnings shareholders on 25 April 2013 20.84 0.125

Commitments

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2013, the Company and its subsidiaries have capital commitments as

follows:

(a) A subsidiary has commitments in respect of constructing new and renovating
existing hotel properties amounting to Baht 2 million (2012: Baht @ mitlion).

(b) The Company and its subsidiaries have commitments that relate to projects to
develop properties for sale amounting to approximately Baht 81 million (2012: Baht

2 million).

(c) A subsidiary entered into an Agreement to Purchase and Sale of Land, having a
total land area of 237 rai 1 ngarn 39.6 square wah, with a third party. The subsidiary
will peri.odically acquire the land in accordance with terms and conditions as set forth
in the aforesaid Agreement. The subsidiary initially acquired the land, having a total
area of 53 rai 2 ngarn 3.4 square wah. The subsidiary holds the right to acquire the
remaining land, having a total area of 183 rai 3 ngarn 36.2 square wah, by 1 July
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2018. The subsidiary paid the deposit of Baht 65 million and the purchase price of
the remairiing land shall be increased at rate of 5% on every anniversary date
following the date that the Agreement to Purchase and Sale of Land was executed.

Operating agreements

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the subsidiaries have operating agreements as

follows:

(a) The subsidiaries have entered into operating agreements with certain companies
whereby these companies are to operate the subsidiaries’ hotels and golf
businesses. In consideration of such services, the subsidiaries are committed to pay
remuneration at the rates, terms and basis specified in the agreements. These

agreements are summarised as follows:

Company Business unit Operalor Cordract period Faes

Banglac Grande Limiled Angsana Laguna Phukel  Banyan Tros Corporale Ple. Limited 1.7.2011 - 30.6.2012 - Royally fee: 3% of \ofal revenue

{Formerly known as Banyan Tree
Hotals & Resorts Ple. Limlted}

Banyan Tree Hotals & 1.7.2012 - 30.11.2031 - Royalty fee: 3% of lotal revenue
Resorts Pte. Limlted

Banyan Tree Resorls & Spas 1.7.2011 - 30.6.2012 - Management fee: 10% of gross operaling profil
(Thalland) Company Limiled

Banyan Tree Holels & Reseris 1.7.2092 -30.11.2031 - Management fee: 10% of gross aperaling profit

(Thalland) Limited

Laguna Grande Limiled Laguna Phuket Golf Club  Banyan Tree Resarls & Spas 1.1.2009 - 30,6.2012 - Basis lachnical fea: 3% of tatal revenue
(Thalland) Gompany Limiied - Incentive fee: 10% of gross aperaling profit
Banyan Tree Hotels & Resarts 1.7.2012-31,7.2013 - Basic lechnical fee: 3% of lotal revenue
Ple. Limiled - Incantive fea: 10% of gross operallng profit
Laguna Banyan Tres Limited  Banyan Tree Phuket Banyan Tree Corporate Ple. Limiled  1.1.2009-306 2012 - Rayalty fee: 2% of tota) reventua

{Formerly known as Banyan Tree

Hotels 8 Resorts Ple, Limiled)

Banyan Tree Hotels & 1,7.2012 - 31.12.2045 - Royally fae: 2% of tolal revenue
Raesorts Ple. Limited {a)
Banyan Tree Resorls & Spas 1.1,2009 - 30.6.2012 - Technical fae: 7.5% of gross operating profil

{Thalland) Company Limited ‘
Banyan Tree Holels & Resorls 1.7.2012 - 31.12.20156 - Technical foe; 7.5% of gross operaling profil

[Thailand) Limited (a)
Thal Wah Piaza Limited Banyan Troe Bangkok Banyan Tree Corporate Pla. Limiled ~ 1.1.2009-306.2012 - Royalty fee: 3% of lotal revanue

{Formerly known as Banyan Tree

Hotels & Resorts Pte. Limlted)

Banyan Tree Hotels & 1,7.2012 - 31.12.2021 - Royalty fes: 3% of lotal revenua
Resorts Pta. Limited {b}
Banyan Tree Resorls & Spas 1.1.2009 - 30.6,2012 - Managemers fee: 10% of gross operaling profit

{Thailand) Company Limiled
Banyan Tree Holels & Resorls 1.7.2012 - 31.12.2024 - Manageamant fee: 10% of gross cperating profil

(Thalland} Limiled {b)
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Company Businass unit Operalor Conlracl period Faes

Laguna Village Limited QOuuigger Laguna Outrigger Hotels (Thailand) 29.5,2009 - 31.12.2019 - Baslc managemenl fee: 2% of lolal revenue flar
Phuke! Resorl and Vitlas  Limited {c) the first fiscal year, 2.5% of lotal revenue for
the second fiscal year and 3% of lolal revenue

far the remaln fiscal years

- Incentive fee. 7% of gross operallng profit

{a}  Operator has option to extend for 1 additicnal period of 10 years
(b)  Operator has option to extend for 1 additional period of 20 yaars.

[¢} Operatar has oplion to exlend for 2 additional periods of 10 years.
(b) The Company and its subsidiaries have commitments in respect of cash rewards

options for villa rental scheme agreements. The terms of the agreements are

generally 6 years.
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, future minimum payments required under these
agreements were as follows. '
(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated . Separate

financial statements financial statements
2013 2012 2013 2012

Payable within;
In up to 1 year 112 135 22 28
In over 1 and up to 5 years 168 228 12 22
In over 5 years 15 5 2 -

During the year 2013, the Company and its subsidiaries recognised rental expenses of
Baht 136 million (2012: Baht 156 million) {Separate financial statements: Baht 27 million
and 2012: Baht 28 million).

Investment commitment

A subsidiary entered into the Limited Partnership Agreement in respect of Banyan Tree
Indochina Hospitality Fund, L.P. ("the Fund”), an exempted limited partnership formed
under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The fund is managed by Banyan Tree Indochina
(GP) Company Limited and focuses mainly on hotel and resort investments in Vietnam,
Cambodia and Laos. Based on the fund size of USD 283 million at closing date on
30 June 2009, the capital commitment of USD 16 million would be approximately 5.65%
of the fund. As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the subsidiary has made capital
contribution of USD 13 million and USD 11 million, respectively, to the Fund.
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38.

Servitude over land

As at 31 December 2013, some subsidiaries have land servitudes of approximately
6 rai in Phuket province, which are presented under property development cost and
property, plant and equipment.

Guarantees

a) As at 31 December 2013, there were bank guarantees amounting to Baht 47 miilion
(Separate financial statements: Baht 3 million) issued to various parties on behalf of
the Company and its subsidiaries, mainly provided for the usage of electricity, other
utilities and telecommunication channels (2012: Baht 46 million, Separate financial

statements: Baht 2 million).

by As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company has the provision of a guarantee
for a loan obtained by Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co., Ltd. (LBTH) by issuing the
letter of indemnity to its parent company, Banyan Tree Holdings Limited. The
provision of the guarantee is to secure the loan of LBTH in proportion to the equity
interest of 49.04 % of the Company in LBTH (through Laguna Banyan Tree Limited).

Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make

decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its petformance.

For management purposes, the Company and its subsidiaries are organised into business
units based on its products and services and have the reportable segments as follows:

- Hotel business segment relates to hotel and restaurant operations including other

relating businesses such as golf club and sales of merchandise.

- Property development segment relates to property sales and sale of holiday club

memberships.

- Office rental segment relates to rental and service from lands and buildings which

managements manage for lease.

- Head office segment relates to expenses incurred by corporate office and is not

allocated to other operating segments.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating

segments.
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The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of the business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing
performance. Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and
total assets and on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss

and total assets in the financial statements.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent

with that for third party transactions.

The following tables present revenue, profit and total assets information regarding the
Company and its subsidiaries’ operating segments for the year ended 31 December 2013

and 2012, respectively.

Intersegment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Hotel Property Office
Business Development Rental Head Office Total
Revenue:
Segment revenue

Total revenues 3,650 753 119 - 4,522

Intersegment revenues (222) )] {30} - {261)

Revenue from external customers 3,428 744 89 - 4,261
Results:

Segment results 199 52 28 33 312
Unallocated income 66
Profit from operations and other Income a78
Interest income 2 22 - 1 25
Finance cost (105) (53) - (22) {180)
Share of loss from investment In associate (23) 2 - - (21)
Profit before income tax expenses 202
Income tax expenses {85)
Profit for the year 117
Segment total assets 11,737 4,027 977 1,308 18,047
Investments in associate accounted for the

equity method 457 - - - 457
Additions of non-current assets other than

financial instruments, deferred tax assets 214 2 3 317 564
Other segment information
Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment 276 5 - 5 286
Amortisation fo leasehald rights - 3 - - 3
Reversal of loss on impairment of investment - - - 245 245
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Revenue:
Segment revenue
Total revenues

Intersegment revenues

Revenue from to external customers

Results:

Segment results

Unallocated income

Profit from operations and other income
Interest income

Finance cost

Share of loss from investment in associate
Profit before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Segment total assets

Investments in associate accounted for
under the equify method

Additions of non-current assets other than
financial instrurnents, deferred tax assets

Other segment information

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of leasehold rights

{Unit: Million Baht)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Hotel Property Office

Business Development Rental Head Office Total
3,398 902 123 - 4,423
(233) &) (31) - (273)
3,165 893 92 - 4,150
142 182 37 {227} 134
115
248
2 32 - - 34
{100) (66) - (14) {180)
(31) 26 - - {5)
o8
{61)
37
14,134 310 1,192 1,091 19,518
516 - - - 516
356 6 102 227 691
278 7 - 7 292
- 3 - - 3
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Revenue from external customers is based on locations of the customers.

(Unit: Million Baht)

2013 2012

Revenue from external customers

Thailand 4176 4,072
Others 85 78
Total 4,261 4,150
Non-current assets other than financial instruments and

deferred tax assets

Thailand 11,771 14,359
Others 37 39
Total 11,808 14,398

For the year 2013 and 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries have no major customer
with revenue of 10% or more of an entity's revenues.

Financial instruments
Financial risk management

The Company and its subsidiaries' financial instruments, as defined under Thai
Accounting Standard No. 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations’,
principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and
payables, loans, investments, short-term and long-term loans. The financial risks
associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is described

below.
Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to
trade accounts receivable from the hotel, space rental, and property development
businesses. However, due to the large number and diversity of the entities comprising the
Company and its subsidiaries’ customer base, the Company and its subsidiaries do not

anticipate material losses from debt collection.
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Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relate primarily to their

deposits with financial institutions, long-term trade accounts receivable and bank

overdrafts and loans. Most of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial assets and

liabilities have floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market

interest rates. The Company and its subsidiaries do not use derivative financial

instruments to hedge such risk (the detail of long-term loans are set out in Note 25).

Significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarised

in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates

further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the

maturity date.

Financial assal

Cash equivalents (excluding cash)
Current investmerts

Trada and other recelveblas

Long-lerm fixed deposil .

Long-lerm (rade accounts receivable
FEinancial lablilias

Trade and other payables

Short-term foans from financial institutions

Long-term loans from financial inslilutions

Financial assels

Cash equivalents {excluding cash)

Trade and olher recejvables

Long-term fixed deposit

Long-term trade accounls receivable
Lang-term loans to subsidiaries

Finangial liabilitias

Trade and olher payables

Long-term loans from subsidiaries
Short-lerm loans from financial institullons

Long-lerm loans from financial institutions

Cansolidated financlal slatemants

{Unii: Millicn Baht)

As at 31 Cecember 2013

Flxed inlares! rates

Within Ovear 1 year Floaling Non-Interasl Inleres! rale
1 year to 5 years interesi rate baaring Total {% per annum}
10 - 355 365 0.50% - 1.60%
10 - 10 1.75%
78 - a3 468 579 4.78%-12%
2 - - 2 3%
74 62 - 144 4.78%-12%
- - 609 608
170 - 170 3.54%-3.55%
2870 - 2,970 5.38%-5.88%

Sapareale financial statements

{Unil: Millicn Baht)

As al 31 December 2013

Fixed inleresl rates

Within QOver 1 year Floating Non-Interest Inleresi rale
1 year o G years Inferest rate bearing Total (% per annum}
17 - 17 0.5% - 1.60%
2 1 203 206 4.78%-12%
2 - - 2 3%
] 6 14 4.78%-12%
1,948 1,948 6.89%
- - 51 51
- 674 - 674 6.26%
150 150 356%
175 175 5.88%
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Einancial assets

Cash equivalents (excluding cash)
Trade and clher recelvablas
Long-term fixed deposit

Long-term lrade ascounts receivable
Long-term loans o employees
Einanclal liabilitles

Trade and othar payablas

Lonhg-lerm loans fram financial insfitutions

Einancial assets

Cash equivalents (excluding cash)
Trade and other receivables
Long-term fixed deposht

Long-term trade accounts recelvable
Lonp-term loans 1o subsidiaries
Einanelal Nabllitiss

Trade and other payables
Leng-lerm loans from subsidiaries

Long-term loans from financlal inslilutions

Foreign currency risk

Cansolidated financlal statemenls

(Unit: Milion Baht)

As al 31 December 2012

Fixed inleres! rales

Within Cver 1 year Floaling Non-Inlerest Interest rate
1 year ta 5 years inlerest rale bearing Tolal (% per annum}
565 - 565 0.625% - 0.76%
86 36 399 523 4.78%-12%
2 - 2 3%
61 99 - 160 4,78%-12%
2 - 2 5.92%
- 691 691 -
3,397 3,397 5.50%-5.75%
{Unil: Milion Baht}
Seperalo financial staiements
As at 31 December 2012
Fixed interest ralas
Within Over 1 year Floating Non-Interest Interest rate
1 year to b years inlerest rate bearing Total (% per annum)
- - 53 53 0.625% - 0.75%
5 - 20 158 183 4.76%-12%
2 2 %
6 19 25 4.76%-12%
- 1,691 1,691 7.46%
- - 61 61 -
- 67C 8670 5.688%
- - 245 245 5.50%

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from

trading transactions and borrowings that are
addition to those transactional exposures, the Company is also exposed to the effect of

denominated in foreign currencies. In

foreign exchange movements on its investment in foreign subsidiaries and associates,

which currently are not hedged by any derivative financial instrument.
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41.

The balances of the Company and its subsidiaries' financial assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are summarised below.

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial stalements
Financial assets Flnanclal Financial assets Financial
as at liabilities as at as at liabilities as at Average exchange rate as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Fargiqn currency 2013 2012 2013 . 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

(Million)  (Million) (Milliony (Million} (Million) (Million) (Milion) (Millicn) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US Dollar 4 3 - - - 1 - - 32,7644 30.6824

Fair value of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Compahy’s and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-
term in nature or bear floating interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be

materially different from the amounts presented in statements of financial position.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settied
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is
determined ioy reference to the market price of the financial instrument or by using an
appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it has
appropriate financial structure and preserves the ability to continue its business as a going

concern.

According to the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the Group's
debt-to-equity ratio was 0.58:1 (2012: 0.57:1) and the Company’'s was 0.24:1 (2012:
0.22:1).

Litigation

A case was brought to the Phuket Provincial Court on 8 October 2009, in which 4 of
LRH's affiliated companies and 10 individual directors are the defendants. The plaintiffs
referred in the plaint that they purchased units in Allamanda 1 Condominium during 1991
to 1995. The plaintiffs claim the Sale and Purchase Agreement called for common area of
approximately 20 rai. On registration of Allamanda 1 Condominium, Allamanda 1
Condominium was registered with only 9 rai 2 ngan 9 square wah. As result, the plaintiffs
claim that defendants have breached the Sale and Purchase Agreement. Therefore, the
plaintiffs requested the defendants to completely deliver the common area as specified by
the Agreement by transfer of the land totaling 10 rai 3 ngan 97.1 square wah to
Allamanda 1 Juristic Person, as the 10th plaintiff, or to be jointly liable for the
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43.

compensation of Baht 132 million in case the transfer of land cannot be made. The
plaintiffs also requested for additional compensation in the amount of Baht 56 million for
unlawful use of the land which is supposed to be common property of Allamanda 1
Condominium. The total amount of claim is Baht 188 million with interest at the rate of
7.5% per annum from the date the claim was lodged until the defendants have made full
payment. The plaintiffs also claimed that the former and current directors, totaling ten, of
those subsidiaries as the 5th to 14th defendants were the representatives of the
subsidiaries being the 1st to 4th defendants, therefore, must also be jointly liable with

those subsidiaries.

LRH's affiliated companies and individual directors have lodged their statement of
defense and believe that the plaintiff's claims are invalid, therefore, no provision has been

made in the accounts.

The plaintiffs filed a petition with the Court seeking the Court’s interim injunction of which
the defendants shall not dispose and amend the status of nine plots of land in dispute with
land registry office during the trial. On 20 January 2012, the Court granted the interim

injunction.
On 7 February 2014, the Phuket Provincial Court has postponed the hearing for judgment
to 28 March 2014.

Event after the reporting period

On 21 February 2014, the meeting of the Company's Board of Directors agreed to
propose in the 2014 Annual General Meeting to appropriate the retained earnings as
dividend payment to shareholders in the amount of Baht 0.34 per share, totaling Baht
56.67 million. Such dividend payment is subjected to final approval at the 2014 Annual

General Meeting.
Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of

Directors on 21 February 2014.
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